
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE 
DELIVERY) will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
WEDNESDAY, 14TH MAY 2008 at the conclusion of the meeting 
of the Licensing Committee and you are requested to attend for the 
transaction of the following business:- 

 
 
 APOLOGIES 
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 
 To elect a Chairman of the Panel. 

 

2. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) held on 1st April 2008. 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 

prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any 
Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 overleaf. 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Panel. 

 

5. CORPORATE PLAN WORKING GROUP   
 
 To appoint three Members to the Corporate Plan Working Group. 

 
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Panel together with 
Councillor P G Mitchell were appointed to the Working Group in 
2007/08. 
 
(Please note that a meeting of the Group is to be held at 7 pm on 
Thursday, 15th May 2008.) 
 

6. CAMBRIDGESHIRE HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE   

 
 To appoint one Member and one Member substitute to the 

Cambridgeshire Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee.  
(Councillor Mrs M Banerjee was appointed to the Committee in 
2007/08 and Councillor S J Criswell served as the Member substitute.) 
 

7. ST IVES, HUNTINGDON AND RAMSEY TOWN CENTRE 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY GROUPS   

 
 To appoint two Members of the Panel to each of the St Ives, 



 
Huntingdon and Ramsey Town Centre Environmental Improvements 
Advisory Groups. 
 
(Note: These should not be the local Members who will be appointed 

separately.) 
 
In the previous year, the following appointments were made:- 
 
St Ives  - Councillors S J Criswell and J M Sadler 
Huntingdon     - The late Councillor Mrs C A Godley and  

Councillor P K Ursell 
Ramsey - Councillors J E Garner and J S Watt. 
 

 
 Dated this 6th day of May 2008 
 

 
 Chief Executive 
  

  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a 

greater extent than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the 
Councillor, their family or any person with whom they had a close 
association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner 

and any company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest 

in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the 

public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard 
the Member’s personal interest as being so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest. 

 
 

Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No: 01480 
388007/e-mail:  Christine.Deller@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on 
any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, 
or would like information on any decision taken by the Panel. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except 
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 



 
 
 

If you would like a translation of 
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a  
large text version or an audio version  

please contact the Democratic Services Manager and 
we will try to accommodate your needs. 

 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest 
emergency exit and to make their way to the car park adjacent to the Methodist 
Church on the High Street (opposite Prima's Italian Restaurant). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SERVICE DELIVERY) held in the Council Chamber, Pathfinder 
House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Tuesday, 1 April 
2008. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor S J Criswell – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors Mrs M Banerjee, Mrs K E Cooper, 

J E Garner, D A Giles, Mrs P A Jordan, 
P G Mitchell, J M Sadler, P K Ursell and 
J S Watt. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors 
J D Ablewhite and K J Churchill. 

   
 IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor D C Reynolds. 
 
 

83. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 4th March 2008 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

84. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

85. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN   
 

 The Panel considered the Forward Plan of key decisions (a copy of 
which is appended in the Minute Book) which had been prepared by 
the Leader of the Council for the period 1st April to 31st July 2008. 
 
The Panel noted that a meeting of the St. Ives Environmental 
Improvements Advisory Group was currently being arranged and that 
a report on the adoption of local standards for the provision of sports 
facilities in Huntingdonshire would be considered at the same meeting 
of the Panel. 
 

86. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) 
PROGRESS   

 
 The Panel considered a report by the Head of Administration (a copy 

of which is appended in the Minute Book) which contained details of 
actions taken in response to recent discussions and decisions. 
 
Members noted that the report on Promoting Health in Older People 
Through Physical Exercise would be submitted to the Cabinet on 24th 
April 2008 and that the report on the Town Centre Cleaning Regimes 
would now be submitted to the June meeting of the Panel. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

1



In relation to Minute No. 07/71, Members were informed that a further 
meeting of the Grant Aid Working Group had been arranged for early 
July 2008 at which the Head of Policy and Strategic Services and the 
Sustainable Economic Development Manager would be present. 
 

87. DISABILITY ACCESS STUDY - UPDATE AND OTHER MATTERS   
 

 (Mrs G Bird, Forum Manager for Disability Cambridgeshire (Directions 
Plus), was in attendance for this item). 
 
The Panel welcomed Mrs G Bird, Forum Manager for Disability 
Cambridgeshire (Directions Plus) who had been invited to the 
meeting to discuss the study on Disability Access. Having been 
reminded with the aid of a report by the Head of Administration (a 
copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) of progress of the 
study to date, Mrs Bird advised Members of the background to the 
services offered by Disability Cambridgeshire in providing information 
and advice to disabled people and/or older people and carers in 
Cambridgeshire. Disability Cambridgeshire also provided short 
courses on disability awareness and lobbied on disability issues. 
Having shown recordings of two news items to illustrate the latter, Mrs 
Bird outlined the problem she had experienced with incorrectly 
installed dropped kerbs and her perception of the causes of abuse of 
Blue Badge parking permits. In particular, she stated that there was a 
need to introduce separate permits, which distinguished between 
those with temporary and permanent disabilities. Mrs Bird concluded 
by stressing that the Council should incorporate the views of those 
with disabilities into its policy making.  
 
Members asked a number of questions regarding the installation of 
dropped kerbs and the application process for obtaining Blue Badge 
parking permits. The Panel were acquainted with information from 
Cambridgeshire County Council on the application process and 
measures currently in place to identify abuses of Blue Badge permits 
and the enforcement that was undertaken. Having discussed the 
problems experienced by legitimate Blue Badge holders as a result of 
the abuses of the system, the Panel asked that clarification be sought 
on the procedures involved in applying for a permit. 
 
Having discussed the potential benefits of introducing ‘Blue Routes’ to 
assist those with disabilities in navigating around the District’s towns, 
the Panel were informed that following consultation, the Papworth 
Trust had advised that it did not have similar routes in the District. The 
Panel requested that further investigation be carried out into the 
existence of a disability ‘Blue Route’ scheme that was introduced by 
the Council in previous years. 
 
Further to Minute No. 07/79, the Panel gave further consideration to 
the provision of advocacy services by disability organisations. Mrs 
Bird confirmed that Disability Cambridgeshire did provide such a 
service. She also provided an update on new government requests to 
introduce a countywide coalition of disabled people. 
 
Finally, Members reiterated their wish to invite a representative of the 
Hunts Forum of Voluntary Organisations to a future meeting to 
discuss the study.  
 

2



88. OUTCOME OF CAMBRIDGESHIRE SUPPORTING PEOPLE HOME 
IMPROVEMENT AGENCY REVIEW   

 
 (Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds, Executive Councillor for Housing and 

Health, was in attendance for this item). 
 
Following an introduction by the Executive Councillor for Housing and 
Health, the Head of Housing Services presented to the Panel the 
findings to date of a review of the Cambridgeshire Supporting People 
Home Improvement Agency (HIA). Having outlined the background to 
Supporting People, the Head of Housing Services reported on the 
complex Home Improvement Agency arrangements in 
Cambridgeshire. Each of the five agencies varied in the range of 
services they provided and the funding allocated to them.  The Panel 
were informed that the review was intended to ensure that all HIAs 
were fit for the future, particularly in light of demographic changes in 
the County. It also made a value for money comparison of the HIAs. 
In that respect, the Panel noted that the Huntingdonshire HIA carried 
out the greatest volume of disability housing adaptations for the most 
economic price, and that the quality of delivery and customer 
satisfaction levels at the completion of adaptations were high for all 
HIAs. 
 
Following a question on the likely effect of future market testing on the 
quality of local services, the Head of Housing Services advised that 
the current review included an assessment of HIAs’ future ability to 
maintain current standards or improve the services they provide. 
 
Although not part of the review, the Panel raised concerns regarding 
the length of time taken by Occupational Therapists to carry out 
assessments of need for home adaptations. In response, the Head of 
Housing Services informed Members that the Primary Care Trust had 
provided assurances that additional resources would be made 
available to ensure that the level of service matched that in other 
Districts in Cambridgeshire.  
 

89. WORK PROGRAMME AND ENGAGEMENT WITH THE 
EXECUTIVE   

 
 The Panel considered a report by the Head of Administration (a copy 

of which is appended in the Minute Book) which had been prepared 
following comments by Members regarding their work programme 
and engagement with the Executive. Members had expressed 
concern that few items appearing on the Forward Plan fell within their 
remit and that this had consequences for their ability to fulfil their 
function of holding the Executive to account.   
 
Members discussed a suggestion to invite Executive Councillors to a 
future meeting to plan a programme of work but concluded that, while 
it would increase levels of pre-scrutiny, it would not increase overall 
support between the Panel and the Executive. 
 
It was agreed to refer this matter to the next joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Chairmen’s meeting for consideration. 
 
 

3



90. SCRUTINY   
 

 The 82nd Edition of the Decision Digest was received and noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

4


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES

